
Civic Centre, Windmill Street, Gravesend Kent DA12 1AU 

 
 

 
 

Crime and Disorder 
Scrutiny Committee 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
Members of the Crime and Disorder Scrutiny Committee of Gravesham Borough Council are 
summoned to attend a meeting to be held at the Civic Centre, Windmill Street, Gravesend, Kent on 
Wednesday, 12 October 2011 at 7.30 pm when the business specified in the following agenda is 
proposed to be transacted. 
 
 

 
S Kilkie 
Assistant Director (Communities) 
 
 

Agenda 
 

Part A 
Items likely to be considered in Public 

1. Apologies   

2. Declarations of Interest   

3. To consider whether any items in Part A will be considered in private or any 
items in Part B in public  

 

4. Community Safety Strategic Priorities 2011-12  (Pages 1 - 6) 

5. Mid-year Achievements - Community Safety Strategy 2011-12  (Pages 7 - 16) 

6. Kent Probation Overview - Presentation by Sue Moyse  Senior Probation 
Officer  

(Pages 17 - 30) 

7. Exclusion of the public   

 To move, if required, that pursuant to Section 100A(4) of the Local 
Government Act 1972 that the public be excluded from any otems 
includedin Part B of the agenda because it is likely in view of the nature 
of business to be transacted that if members of the public are present 
during those items, there could be disclosure of exempt information as 
defined in Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Act  

 

Public Document Pack



 

8. Any other business which by reason of special circumstances the Chair is 
of the opinion should be considered as a matter of urgency.  

 

 
 
 
Members 
 
Cllr Brian Sangha (Chair) 
Cllr Jean Averibou (Vice-Chair) 
 
Councillors: Lesley Boycott 

Senja Compton 
Colin Dennis 
Brian Francis 
Rob Halpin 
Sara Langdale 
Rosemary Leadley 
Derek Shelbrooke 
 

 
Substitutes: Jane Cribbon 

Les Howes 
David Hurley 
Leslie Pearton 
Caroline Shelton 
Michael Snelling 
 

 
 
 
 



 1 

Classification: 
Part 1 – Public 
 
Key Decision: 
No 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 Gravesham Borough Council 
 
Report to: Crime and Disorder Scrutiny Committee 
 
Date: 12 October 2011 
 
Reporting Officer: Kath Donald, Strategic Manager (Community Safety Unit) 
 
Subject: Community Safety Strategic Priorities 2011-12 
 
Purpose and summary of report: 
This report provides Members with details of the issues that have been identified as priorities within 
the Dartford and Gravesham Community Safety Strategy 2011-12.  The report explains the process 
by which these priorities have been identified and why tackling these has been recognised as key 
by the Community Safety Partnership.  
 
Recommendations: 
Members are invited to note and comment upon the content of the report. 
 
1.   Introduction – the process of identifying community safety priorities 
 
1.1 In 2006, a review of the partnership provisions of the Crime and Disorder Act 1998 and the 

Police Reform Act 2002 led to a series of recommendations that resulted in a new set of 
minimum standards which came into force in August 2007.  These standards placed an 
obligation on responsible authorities (statutory partners) to complete a Strategic 
Assessment every year as opposed to every three years as previously required.  The 
Strategic Assessment is, in effect, an annual audit of crime and disorder, substance misuse 
and anti-social behaviour. 

 
1.2 The Strategic Assessment is completed in the autumn each year and gathers together 

recorded data from all agencies participating in the Community Safety Partnership for the 
previous 12 months ending 30 September.  This data is then analysed and overlaid with 
demographic information to provide context and perspective.  This process helps to identify 
those crime and community safety issues that are currently most prevalent and helps us to 
predict future trends.  The intention is to ensure that an intelligence-led business planning 
approach is taken to determining community safety priorities as well as seeking to have a 
better understanding of factors that may contribute to these problems in order that they can 
be effectively addressed. 

 
1.3 In addition to the findings of the Strategic Assessment, account is also taken of issues 

coming to the attention of the Community Safety Unit through community forums, residents’ 
groups and consultation that takes place with the Residents’ Panel, Ward-based Panel 

Agenda Item 4Page 1



 2 

meetings and other public consultation surveys undertaken during the course of the year.  
This ensures that recorded data is supported by qualitative information that may sometimes 
better represent the crime and community concerns and experiences of local people. 

 
2. Strategic priorities 2011-12 
 

The Dartford and Gravesham Community Safety Partnership agreed the strategic priorities 
for 2011-12 in March this year.  These are: 

 
§ Violent crime (including domestic abuse); 
 
§ Anti-social behaviour (ASB); 

 
§ Young people (improving the safety of young people and addressing youth 

offending); 
 

§ Theft and handling of stolen goods; 
 

§ Substance misuse; 
 

§ Reducing re-offending. 
 

Improving public perceptions about crime and ASB and reducing fear of crime were agreed 
as a theme running through each of the above.  The priorities are considered below, 
together with brief details explaining why these issues are being targeted. 
 

3. Reducing violent crime and repeat offences of domestic abuse 
 
3.1 Protecting people’s personal safety is always a priority for agencies and local residents alike 

and the nature of this crime category means that work needs to continue to address repeat 
victimisation, offending behaviour and to target geographical areas where violence occurs.  
The average rate of violent crime recorded in both Dartford and Gravesham was higher than 
the Kent-average. 

 
Strategic Assessment 2010: Violent crime data 
 Oct-Sept 09 Oct-Sept 10 No. change % change Per 1,000 

pop. 
Dartford 1,630 1,641 11 0.7% 17.68 
Gravesham 1,901 1,770 -131 -6.9% 17.96 
Kent 24,822 23,118 -1,704 -6.9% 13.97 
 

3.2 Domestic abuse often involves physical violence and makes up a significant proportion of 
recorded violent crime affecting hundreds of victims with children and family members also 
indirectly affected. The focus is on providing victims with support and assistance and in 
dealing with perpetrators effectively to prevent abuse recurring.   

 
Strategic Assessment 2010: Domestic abuse data 
 Oct-Sept 

09 
Oct-Sept 

10 
No. 

change 
% 

change 
Per 

1,000 
pop 

No. 
repeat 
victims 

% repeat 
victims 

Dartford 1,247 1,320 73 5.9% 18.36 286 21.7% 
Gravesham 1,686 1606 -80 -4.7% 21.08 373 23.2% 
Kent 21,239 21,561 322 1.5% 16.78 5,032 23.3% 

Page 2



 3 

4. Reducing anti-social behaviour (ASB) and associated environmental crime 
 
4.1 Tackling ASB and linked environmental crime such as criminal damage, graffiti and 

deliberate fire-setting, is a key priority for both the Partnership and local people.  Residents’ 
concerns about ASB have been brought to our attention through the work of the CSU and 
the ASB Team, through local surveys, local Panel meetings and through the contact that 
residents have with their local Councillors and MP.  The Strategic Assessment reported 
1,842 calls had been recorded by Kent Police in Gravesham in the year ending September 
2010, with the most frequently reported problem being ‘loutish, rowdy or noisy behaviour in 
public’ and, unsurprisingly, with these calls most often relating to areas in and around 
Gravesend town centre. 

 
4.2 The Kent Crime and Victimisation Survey is used to monitor public perception in respect of 

different types of ASB and how big a problem people believe these to be in their local area. 
Responses consistently indicated that levels of concerns over issues such as ‘teenagers 
hanging around’, ‘vandalism, graffiti and damage’ and ‘rubbish or litter lying around’ were 
significantly higher locally than across other districts in Kent. 

 
5. Improving safety for young people and reducing youth offending 
 
5.1 The safety of young people and children is paramount and first and foremost the emphasis 

is on reducing the risk of children and young people becoming victims of crime.  Information 
provided by Kent Children’s Trust for the Strategic Assessment found that the number of 
children and young people who had been victims of crime in Gravesham was higher than 
the Kent average whilst 68.2% of those surveyed stated that they felt safe in the area in 
which they lived – slightly lower than the Kent average of 70%. 

 
5.2 The Kent Young Offending Service (YOS) provided data relating to youth offending.  There 

had been a significant drop of 32% in the number of young offenders in Gravesham in the 
year July 2009-June 2010.  Only 1.7% of the population aged between 10-17 years were 
involved in offending but this was just slightly higher than the Kent average of 1.5%.  The 
number of first time entrants to the youth justice system had also fallen.  This suggested that 
the interventions used by agencies through partnership working were having some effect 
and therefore, this work should continue to be developed and prioritised. 

 
Strategic Assessment 2010: New entrants to the Youth Justice System 
 July 2008-June 2009 July 2009-June 2010  

Female Male All Female Male All % 
change 

Dartford 27 90 117 43 80 123 5.1% 
Gravesham 50 135 185 52 103 155 -16.2% 
KCC Area 838 1538 2376 630 113 1743 -26.6% 
 

6. Reducing offences of theft and handling stolen goods 
 
6.1 Both at the time of the completion of the Strategic Assessment and subsequently, very 

significant increases in theft and handling stolen goods offences had been seen not only in 
North Kent but nationwide.  The increase may have been linked to an upturn and steady 
increase for commodity metal, the main driver for criminal activity having been the 
international price of scrap metal.  The economic climate and recession also suggested that 
we might see future increases in theft offences and forms of acquisitive crime such as 
shoplifting and personal theft.  Gravesham had also experienced a recurring problem of 
theft from parking ticket machines in and around the town centre. 

Page 3



 4 

 
6.2 Theft and handling offences are also a high volume crime category: in the year ending 

September 2010, there were 1,717 offences recorded in Gravesham – this equated to 
23.5% or almost a quarter of the total crime recorded that year.  This, combined with the 
serious increase in this crime category, led to partnership agreement that this should be a 
new strategic priority for the forthcoming year. 

 
Strategic Assessment 2010: Theft offences data 
 Oct-Sept 09 Oct-Sept 10 No. change % change Per 1,000 

pop. 
Dartford 877 1102 225 25.7% 11.27 
Gravesham 790 1041 251 31.8% 10.57 
 

7. Tackling substance misuse 
 
7.1 Substance misuse is inextricably tied to crime and disorder with established links with both 

violent crime and acquisitive crime.  Evidence also established links between prolific 
offending behaviour with alcohol being a key factor in repeat offending involving violence 
and drug misuse/dependency being a key factor in acquisitive crime.  The partnership was 
also keen to minimise the associated risks to health of substance misuse, particularly in 
relation to young people.  Public consultation through the KCVS mentioned earlier also 
indicated that ‘people using or dealing drugs in their neighbourhood’ and ‘people being 
drunk and rowdy in public’ were issues about which local residents were concerned and 
perceived as a problem. 

 
7.2 Data collated as part of the Strategic Assessment process had indicated a significant rise in 

drug offences, with levels in Gravesham heading towards being double the average in Kent 
and being the highest in the County.  However, it is very important to note that very 
intensive Police activity to disrupt local drug markets, particularly those concerned with the 
supply of Class A drugs would have been partly responsible for the increase seen locally.  
The prediction was that the impact of this activity would be the start of a decline in drug 
offences over the following year. 

 
Strategic Assessment 2010: Drug offences data 
 Oct-Sept 09 Oct-Sept 10 No. change % change Per 1,000 

pop. 
Dartford 361 324 -37 -10.2% 3.49 
Gravesham 331 422 91 27.5% 3.90 
Kent 3,982 4,311 329 8.3% 2.60 
 

8. Reducing re-offending 
 
8.1 Reducing re-offending is concerned with cutting crime by stopping and/or changing the 

behaviour of known prolific offenders.  Whilst repeat offenders may be small in number, they 
cause disproportionate damage to local communities.  The partnership agreed that reducing 
re-offending would be a new strategic priority with the challenge of ensuring that services 
delivered a balance between enforcement and protecting the public and supporting 
offenders in order that their return to criminality could be prevented. 

 
8.2 It was agreed that partnership activity on reducing re-offending would need to be led by 

Kent Police and Kent Probation Service as the two agencies most directly involved in 
working with offenders.  Kent Probation provided a “Reducing Re-offending: Criminogenic 
Need Analysis’ as part of the Strategic Assessment process.  The report identified specific 

Page 4



 5 

needs that were linked to the risk of re-offending e.g. accommodation, education, training 
and/or employment, drug and alcohol dependency.  Tackling these issues was seen as 
potential area for more multi-agency working. The partnership agreed that a new CSP sub-
group would be formed to take this work forward in 2011-12 headed by Kent Police and 
Kent Probation. 

 
9. Delivery the Community Safety Strategy 
 
9.1 Once the strategic priorities had been identified both Dartford and Gravesham CSU 

Managers worked collaboratively to provide the new Strategy for 2011-12.  Performance 
reports are provided on a quarterly basis to the Main CSP to consider the overall impact that 
work on the ground is having on crime and ASB levels.  Additionally, the Chairs of each of 
the CSP Sub-Groups report back to the CSP Support Group each quarter as another 
mechanism for ensuring that partners are kept informed of the progress being made by 
each Sub-Group in delivering activities that support the strategic priority relevant to their 
area. 

 
Kath Donald 
Strategic Manager, Gravesham Community Safety Unit 
21 September 2011 

Page 5



Page 6

This page is intentionally left blank



 1 

Classification: 
Part 1 – Public 
 
Key Decision: 
No 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 Gravesham Borough Council 
 
Report to: Crime and Disorder Scrutiny Committee 
 
Date: 12 October 2011 
 
Reporting Officer: Kath Donald, Strategic Manager (Community Safety Unit) 
 
Subject: Mid-year Achievements – Community Safety Strategy 2011-12 
 
Purpose and summary of report: 
This report provides Members with details of work that has been made undertaken during the first 
of this financial year to address the Community safety’s strategic priorities. 
 
Recommendations: 
Members are invited to note and comment upon the content of the report. 
 
1.   Introduction  
 
1.1 Members have been made aware of the strategic priorities of the Dartford and Gravesham 

Community Safety Partnership (CSP) for 2011-12 in the preceding Agenda item.  The 
purpose of this report is to give Members an overview of the progress that has been made 
to date in addressing these priorities as we reach the mid-point of this financial year. 

 
1.2 Each of the priorities is considered individually below together with a summary of some of 

the key work that has already taken place and that is planned for the remainder of the year.  
Where available the most recent recorded crime and ASB data (for the period April-July 
2011 compared to the same period the previous year) has been included as a measure of 
performance or to give context to the work being carried out.  This is the most current data 
available at the time of writing due to changes to the Kent Crimeview data-sharing system 
used by Community Safety Managers – a new Kent Portal for the sharing of all crime and 
ASB data is expected to go live in the next week or two. 

 
2. Reducing violent crime and repeat offences of domestic abuse 
 
2.1 What has the Partnership set out to do this year? 

The Community Safety Strategy sets out the following aims: 
 

§ To reduce incidents of violence against the person; 
§ To reduce incidents with less serious injury; 
§ To reduce repeat incidents of domestic abuse; 

Agenda Item 5Page 7



 2 

§ To ensure there are services in place to support and protect victims of domestic 
abuse; 

§ To reduce incidents of violence occurring in the night-time economy; 
§ To address alcohol-related violent crime as part of a wider multi-agency strategy that 

deals with health and other impacts of alcohol abuse; 
§ To prevent repeat offending through rehabilitation programmes; 
§ To prevent young people from becoming involved in youth-on-youth violence. 
 

2.2 What have we achieved so far? 
 
Police recorded crime: violent crime and domestic abuse in Gravesham  
 Apr-Jul 10 Apr-Jul 11 No. change % change 
Violent crime 601 549 52 -8.6% 
DA Incidents 528 501 27 -5.1% 
DA % repeat 
victims 

 
30.7% 

 
31.3% 

 
n/a 

 
0.6% 

 
2.2.1 Partnership activity to address violent crime is co-ordinated through the Violent Crime Sub-

Group of the CSP and by maintaining close links with the North Kent Domestic Abuse 
Forum.  The following details some of the work undertaken that may have contributed to the 
reduction in violent crime indicated above. 

 
§ Analysis has been completed to allow a better understanding of when violent crime 

is most likely to occur and where in order that resources can be targeted to key 
times and locations.  Approximately 40% of violence against the person offences 
take place in the night-time economy (NTE) between 19.00-01.00hrs.  In relation to 
domestic abuse, research has found that alcohol had been consumed prior to 
offences in nearly three-quarters of cases.  The findings of the analysis are being 
used to form a new Violent Crime Action Plan that will include greater multi-agency 
work, particularly in respect of NTE issues as there is an opportunity to develop the 
work carried out jointly with the newly re-formed business-led G-Safe Scheme and 
licensed premises. 

 
§ S.27 notices have been increasingly used (requiring an individual to leave an area 

and not return for 24 hours) and arrests made for drunk and disorderly behaviour to 
prevent situations developing into ones that could result in violence; 

 
§ Continued to contribute financially (via the CSU, £6,000 this year) towards the 

Sanctuary scheme to ensure that the homes of domestic abuse victims are made 
secure; 

 
§ CSU has provided funding (c. £1,000) to the Freedom Programme which provides 

support to victims of domestic abuse and their families; 
 

§ Continued to provide the One Stop Shop service for victims of domestic abuse to 
obtain advice and assistance and information about legal rights, housing etc.; 

 
§ Supporting and working with Street Pastors to provide an additional presence on 

town centre streets on key evenings to assist anyone who may appear vulnerable 
and assist them in leaving the area safely; 

 

Page 8



 3 

§ The CSU will be coordinating the annual Seasonal Plan to pull together different 
activities being carried out by CSP partners to address any potential increases in 
violence, particularly alcohol-related, in the run up to Christmas and the New Year; 

 
§ Expect Respect programme developed through North Kent Women’s Aid and 

delivered through schools, engaging young people and adults in building healthy 
relationships, challenging assumptions about gender, power and managing conflict 
and making it clear that domestic abuse is a crime. 

 
3. Reducing anti-social behaviour (ASB) and associated environmental crime 
 
3.1 What has the Partnership set out to do this year? 

The Community Safety Strategy sets out the following aims:: 
 

§ To reduce the overall level of ASB; 
§ To reduce criminal damage offences; 
§ To reduce both accidental and deliberate fires; 
§ To improve perceptions of key types of ASB; 
§ To improve public confidence in ways in which the Police and the Council deal with 

ASB. 
 

3.2 What have we achieved so far? 
 

ASB Behaviour Apr-Jun 10 Apr-Jun 11 % change 
Teenagers hanging around 28.2% 18.9% -9.3% 
People drunk/rowdy in public 18.3% 16.0% -2.3% 
Vandalism, graffiti or damage 25.6% 19.2% -6.4% 
Rubbish or litter lying around 30.0% 24.0% -6.0% 
Noisy neighbours 8.5% 5.7% -2.8% 
People using or dealing drugs 14.6% 12.8% -1.8% 
Abandoned or burnt out cars 5.0% 3.6% -1.4% 
Fly-tipping 14.6% 13.5% -1.1% 
Speeding vehicles u/a 22.3% u/a 
% perceived high level of ASB 9.4% 7.6% -1.8% 
 

3.2.1 Key work to date in reducing ASB has included: 
 

§ Successful formal action has been taken against those persistently causing ASB 
(through the seeking and obtaining of Possession Orders, issuing of Acceptable 
Behaviour Agreements and obtaining of Anti-Social Behaviour Orders); 

 
§ Use of the Dispersal Order in the area in and immediately around the Civic Centre 

(the current Order is due to end on 1 October) but this has been an additional and 
useful measure in allowing groups gathering that were causing a disturbance/ASB to 
be effectively dispersed.  This has been robustly enforced and whilst some problems 
continue to occur, the number of reports being received by the CSU currently are 
very significantly less that were being received 12-18 months ago; 

 
§ Increasing our mobile CCTV capacity by purchasing and utilising a fifth mobile 

camera.  Mobile cameras have been constantly deployed both to deter ASB and 
gather evidence primarily in residential locations where ASB has been more 
prevalent; 

Page 9



 4 

§ Delivering a programme of work in conjunction with Kent Probation’s Community 
Payback Team to deal with ASB problems such as fly-tipping. littering, tackling areas 
that have been neglected and attract further damage.  Improvements made through 
this work are very visible and may be helping to improve public perceptions in local 
areas; 

 
§ My Place Matters Project in Riverside Ward – funded through a successful bid to 

Kent Fire & Rescue Service and Clean Kent to tackle environmental crime, educate 
and raise awareness of the damage to communities caused by issues such as fly-
tipping, vandalism and encourage community participation.  This project includes the 
piloting of a Street Champion Scheme which, if successful, we hope to roll out to 
other areas; 

 
§ Ensuring that we pool resources and target them effectively to deal with very local 

issues brought to the attention of the public through the CSU e.g. joint work between 
Police, CSU and Council Wardens, assisted by Turning Point, has been successfully 
dealing with ASB issues being experienced by local residents whose properties in 
central Gravesend adjoin an alleyway that attracted a range of ASB problems; 

 
§ Ensuring that we make people aware of the services of the ASB Team and the CSU 

generally to encourage people to report problems in order that we tackle them early 
on.  30,000 copies of a Community Safety Booklet (funded by advertising) have 
been produced and are distributed regularly; 

 
§ A Risk Assessment Matrix is currently being finalised that will help us to remain 

vigilant in identifying repeat victims of ASB who may be particularly vulnerable in 
order that we can ensure that there is coordinated support across partner agencies 
provided to the individual/family and that communication between agencies is sound. 

 
 

4. Improving safety for young people and reducing youth offending 
 
4.1 What has the Partnership set out to do this year? 

The Community Safety Strategy sets out the following aims: 
 

§ To reduce the number of young people who are repeat victims of crime; 
§ To ensure that young people have safe and accessible places for learning and 

socialising; 
§ To encourage the active participation of young people in positive activities that 

promote mutual respect, social responsibility and taking pride in the local 
environment; 

§ To improve public perceptions about young people and reduce the percentage of 
residents who believe that ‘teenagers hanging around’ is a problem; 

§ To reduce the number of young people entering the youth justice system; 
§ To reduce the number of incidents of youth-on-youth crime. 
 

4.2 What have we achieved so far? 
 
4.2.1 Work in this area is led by the Youth Sub-Group and a multi-agency day was held earlier 

this year to help formulate an action plan for future work.  Particular work to this mid-year 
point has included: 

 

Page 10



 5 

§ Close working with other agencies continues within the CSU particularly with the 
Joint Family Management Programme Coordinator (Kent Police) in delivering 
tailored interventions including ABAs, ASBOs and referrals to programmes delivered 
by the Adolescent Resource Centre (ARC) such as the Youth Intensive Supervision 
Programme; 

 
§ The CSU has met with representatives of the Kent Youth Council who also visited 

the Police Office and the CCTV Control Room. Discussions are taking place to 
develop a joint project with KYC representatives focussing on creating positive 
images of young people and developing intergenerational work further; 

 
§ Joint work has taken place between the CSU and KCC Community Wardens and 

Trading Standards officers following reports of underage drinking/sale of alcohol to 
those underage including test purchasing operations at targeted premises; 

 
§ CSU has provided funding (£9,000) this year towards the salary costs of the ARC 

Drug and Alcohol Worker to provide tailored one-to-one work with young people who 
are misusing substances/at risk of doing so; 

 
§ The CSU has also provided financial support (£1,000) to The Gr@nd Project for the 

delivery of a range of activities over the school summer holiday period.  Workshops 
were held that provided a balance of sports, music and arts leisure activities 
combined with the promotion of health and personal safety advice, signing up of 
families to the ‘Change 4 Life’s Healthy Passport’, handing out of personal alarms 
and the Community Drugs and Alcohol Worker delivered activities to promote 
responsible drinking.  630 young people took part in total (aged up to 25 years); 

 
§ Funding has been provided to Leisure and Sports Development and a further range 

of sports activities and a street dance event have also been provided to young 
people across the Borough (report of outcomes awaited); 

 
§ Joint work with KCC Wardens, KCC Highways (Road Safety Team), Kent Police and 

Parking Services to tackle issues relating to road safety at school start and finishing 
times focussing on schools where problems of inconsiderate parking are most 
prevalent and which have raised concerns for the safety of children and other 
pedestrians and drivers. 

 
5. Reducing offences of theft and handling stolen goods 
  
5.1 What has the Partnership set out to do this year? 

The Community Safety Strategy sets out the following aims: 
 

§ To reduce the total number of theft and handling stolen goods offences; 
§ To reduce the number of metal and cable thefts; 
§ To reduce the number of shoplifting offences; 
§ To reduce the number of robbery offences and theft of personal property e.g. 

through purse dipping, bag theft. 
 

5.2 What have we achieved so far? 
 
5.2.1 Work in this area has been led by the new Theft and Handling Stolen Good Sub-Group of 

the CSP, headed up by Kent Police.  Very concerted efforts have been made to address this 
particular crime category which (as detailed in the previous Agenda item) had seen a very 

Page 11



 6 

significant increase and accounted for a high proportion of total crime.  It is very 
encouraging that figures for April-July 2011 compared to the same period the previous year 
are now recording a reduction of 13.5%. 

 
Police recorded crime: Theft and handling stolen good offences in Gravesham  
 Apr-Jul 10 Apr-Jul 11 No. change % change 
T&HSG 649 561 88 -13.5% 

 
5.2.2 Key work in this area has included: 
 

§ Specific operations have included the use of plain clothes police officers in key 
locations to tackle purse dipping, bag snatches and shoplifting; 

 
§ Increased information-sharing between town centre retail security schemes (G-Safe 

in Gravesham, DTAC in Dartford and Bluewater) has contributed to those 
responsible for crimes such as shoplifting to be more readily identified and 
apprehended and membership of businesses to these schemes has been 
encouraged; 

 
§ ‘Meet and greet’ in the town centre whereby CCTV Operators who identify known 

shoplifters in town will notify Police who will then make their presence known to 
offenders as a deterrent; 

 
§ Specific operations been have run to help reduce metal theft with officers targeting 

scrap metal sites and breakers yards, schools, EDF sub-stations and certain 
industrial sites which have resulted in a number of arrests; 

 
§ Considerable joint working between Police, CSU, Council Parking Services and 

CCTV to address the repeated thefts from car parking ticket machines.  This, 
together with improved security at the machines appears to have halted the problem; 

 
§ G-Safe Exclusions have continued to be used to bar repeat offenders (not 

exclusively concerned with shoplifting) from any business premises that are 
members of the G-Safe scheme.  At the time of writing, 27 Exclusion Orders were in 
effect; 

 
§ Providing crime prevention advice and, in conjunction with Kent Police and services 

such as the Crime Prevention Panel, issued items such as purse chains, property 
marking kits to raise awareness of steps one can take individually to guard against 
theft; 

 
§ Provision of advice to retail security staff to intervene at an earlier stage where they 

suspect that someone may be about to engage in shoplifting rather than acting after 
the event.  This method appears to have been effective in reducing shoplifting; 

 
§ Close working with KCC Wardens who have been based in the CSU as a trial 

method of improving communication and maximising personnel resources that the 
CSU has available to it to respond to concerns/issues affecting local residents.  This 
is particularly useful as, by being present in the CSU daily briefing, Wardens can be 
tasked to issue advice in geographical areas where theft is more prevalent.  Also, 
potentially more vulnerable residents have occasionally come to the attention of the 
CSU and the Wardens have been able to make regular visits to them and 
advise/remind them of personal safety steps. 

Page 12



 7 

 
6. Tackling substance misuse 
 
6.1 What has the Partnership set out to do this year? 

The Community Safety Strategy sets out the following aims: 
 

§ To reduce the number of drug and alcohol-related offences, especially in the night-
time economy; 

§ To reduce the number of alcohol-related hospital attendances at A & E departments; 
§ To increase the number of drug and alcohol misusers accessing treatment; 
§ To improve public perceptions of drunk and rowdy behaviour as a problem; 
§ To improve public perceptions of people using or dealing drugs as a problem. 
 

6.2 What have we achieved so far? 
 
6.2.1 Clearly, Kent Police lead on all enforcement work locally to tackle substance misuse both in 

relation to alcohol and drugs.  The CSP Drug and Alcohol Action Group also aims to deliver 
multi-agency initiatives that can provide additional support to police activity. The significant 
reduction achieved in recorded drug offences between April-July this year compared with 
the same period the previous year may be a demonstration of the longer term benefits of 
some very intensive Police activity in North Kent in the last financial year.  This had involved 
a series of operations led by a dedicated team which culminated in a large number of 
arrests for a range of drug supply offences. 

 
Police recorded crime: Drug offences in Gravesham  
 Apr-Jul 10 Apr-Jul 11 No. change % change 
Drug offences 100 69 31 -31.0% 

 
6.2.2 In addition to Police-led activity, the following are key initiatives that have also been 

delivered through multi-agency working to address substance misuse: 
 

§ Specific work has taken place coordinated via the CSU to target issues relating to 
drug misuse affecting several Council housing blocks and a further residential area 
nearby which had seen a marked increase in the number of discarded needles and 
other drugs paraphernalia.  Joint work with Kent Council on Addiction and Turning 
Point has included the provision of an outreach worker once a week together with a 
worker with Eastern European language skills.  Information materials have been 
translated into key languages and displayed to encourage users to access treatment 
and advice services.  Agencies providing a needle exchange service have also 
reviewed their practices to make sure that the number of needles issued at any one 
time is matched by the number returned.  This has resulted in a reduction in the 
number of discarded needles being found. 

 
§ Enforcement of the Alcohol Control Zones (ACZ).  ACZs have continued to be 

publicised and enforced, particularly in the riverside, Promenade and town centre.  
New signage was ordered and displayed that could more easily convey to people 
that they had entered an area where the drinking of alcohol in public is not permitted; 

 
§ Considerable joint activity has also taken place in tackling street drinking that 

appears to have increased in the town centre in recent months.  Representatives 
from partnership agencies attended a meeting with residents and retailers in the 
area affected to address some of their concerns.  Police and Wardens have carried 
out regular patrols, s.27 notices have been frequently served and arrests made for 

Page 13



 8 

public intoxication and disorder.  This work is still continuing to minimise any 
displacement effects; 

 
§ Work will be commencing shortly to produce the annual Seasonal Plan.  A significant 

proportion of this will involve addressing irresponsible drinking, identifying specific 
measures that may help reduce alcohol-related crime and disorder e.g. use of taxi 
marshals, Street Pastors presence at key times, work with KF&RS to raise 
awareness of the consequences of drink driving etc. 

 
§ Delivered work with young people (as described on pages 4-5) specifically to ensure 

that young people are aware of the dangers of drinking irresponsibly and drug 
misuse and support provided to ARC to run tailored one-to-one sessions. 

 
7. Reducing re-offending 
 
7.1 What has the Partnership set out to do this year? 

The Community Safety Strategy sets out the following aims: 
 

§ To reduce re-offending and ultimately, reduce harm to victims, communities and 
vulnerable groups; 

§ To deliver a co-ordinated and integrated response to the resettlement of offenders; 
§ To reduce the number of prolific offenders who re-offend due to drug or alcohol 

dependency issues; 
§ To reduce the number of young people who are repeat offenders; 
§ To reduce the number of repeat offences of domestic abuse. 

 
7.2 What have we achieved so far? 

CSP work in this area has been subject to some delay due to major restructuring that has 
taken place and is still continuing within Kent Probation and Kent Police, the two lead 
partners for this strategic priority.  A new Sub-Group of the CSP to lead on this work will be 
established once roles and responsibilities through the restructuring process have been 
determined.  However, work continues on a daily basis in dealing with prolific and priority 
offenders through the Integrated Offender Management Unit (Kent Police) and Kent 
Probation casework with individual offenders. 
 
Members will be receiving a presentation from Kent Probation as a separate item on this 
Agenda that will provide details on the work carried out by the service to reduce re-offending 
by probation clients.  
 
 

8. Conclusion 
 
8.1 At a difficult time, with major restructuring amongst key partner agencies, significant 

reductions in finances and staff available to deliver community safety and crime reduction 
initiatives, the Partnership is still making good progress towards achieving its key objectives 
by the end of this financial year.  Total crime recorded between April-July 2011 compared 
with the same period last year indicates a reduction of 3.4% from 2,530 to 2,444 offences.  
Whilst this reduction may seem small, this also needs to be put into the context of 
Gravesham having achieved some of the greatest reductions in crime in the County in 
recent years and therefore continued reductions will become harder to secure. 

 
8.2 This report has highlighted some of the key projects that have taken place thus far but it is 

also important to note that alongside these, the CSU also deal with a huge range of issues 

Page 14



 9 

as they arise on a day-to-day basis through morning briefings.  These are equally as 
important as some of the larger-scale projects to deal with strategic priorities in the longer-
term: they will often relate to minor but persistent problems being experienced by residents 
or local communities and our ability to provide a good service to them is important in 
continuing to improve public confidence in both the CSU and in partner agencies 
commitment to working together taking a co-ordinated and joint approach.  Until recently, 
the CSU received information of a monthly basis on how well local people believed that the 
Police and the Council were dealing with problems in their area: at the end of March 2011, 
Gravesham ranked first/best of all districts in the County. 

 
 
Kath Donald 
Strategic Manager, Gravesham Community Safety Unit 
22 September 2011 

Page 15



Page 16

This page is intentionally left blank



Kent Probation

A
genda Item

 6
P

age 17



PUBLIC PROTECTION

REDUCE RE-OFFENDING

The Aims of ProbationThe Aims of ProbationThe Aims of ProbationThe Aims of Probation

PUNISH OFFENDERS

VICTIM AWARENESS & SUPPORT

REHABILITATE OFFENDERS

P
age 18



Context of the CJS

Pre and Post crime, Pre sentence and Post 
Sentence:
– Police, 
– HMCS, Courts Service
– CPS, Crown Prosecution Service
– HMP, Prison Service
– YOT, Youth Offending Team
– NPS, National Probation Service.
– Parole Board/ NOMS
– Multi-agency arrangements; MAPPA, MARAC, IOM, 
CDRP.

– Agencies and services supporting CJS functions.

P
age 19



The core functions of 
Probation

• Pre sentence reports
– Provide sentencing recommendations based on the overview of  

offence/s and the offenders life, inc factors contributing to crime 
and future risks.

• Assess and manage the risk posed by the offender in the 
Community and Custody
– Identify and provide strategies to address risk factors and reduce 

re-occurrence of offending behaviours.
• Work with offenders (both in community and custodial settings) and 

victims of crime 
– to empower and avoid repeat offending.
– Liase with other organisations to provide services under offender 

management models.

Law Enforcement/Risk Management

P
age 20



Sentencing Options
Custodial Sentences
• Life
• Indeterminate sentence for Public 

Protection (IPP)
• Extended sentence for Public 

Protection (EPP)
• Standard Determinate sentence/Youth 

Offender Institute
• Imprisonment under 12 months

Community Sentences
Community Order up to 3 years inc; 
• Unpaid work 
• Supervision Requirement
• Programme Requirement
• Curfew 
• Specified Activity Requirement
• Prohibited Activity• Imprisonment under 12 months

• Suspended Sentence Order (SSO)

Kent Probation has no statutory 
involvement with those serving 
less than a 12 month prison 
sentence

• Prohibited Activity
• Exclusion
• Residence
• Mental Health Requirement

P
age 21



Prisoners

• Approx 80,000 nationally

• 60,000 short-term sentences / yr
(i.e. average less than 6 weeks)(i.e. average less than 6 weeks)

• 65% of sentences

• 10% of prison population

P
age 22



Probation Caseload

Sentences Offenders Community Custody

6500 6000 4500 
(75%)

1500 
(25%)(75%) (25%)

All figures are approximate

P
age 23



Of the 4500 Community cases

Supervision Community
Payback

Licence

3000 1000 500 3000 
(66%)

1000 
(22%)

500 
(11%)

All figures are approximate

P
age 24



Offender Tiering Framework and Risk
Tier 1
PUNISH

Tier 2
HELP

Tier 3
CHANGE

Tier 4
CONTROL

CHANGE

CONTROL

Dangerous

Prolific

RISK

PUNISH

HELP

CHANGE

67

P
age 25



Caseload Tiering

Tier 1 
Punish 
mode

Tier 2
Help 
mode

Tier 3
Change 
mode

Tier 4
Control mode

12% 30% 45% 13%

P
age 26



How Probation assesses risk?
• Evidence

• Behaviour – PAST, PRESENT and FUTURE intentions... 

• Change in circumstances

• Research, reports and theory.• Research, reports and theory.

• Significant factors;  Static, Dynamic, Acute.
•
• Likelihood/Immanency & Impact

• Internal & External factors

• Triggers

P
age 27



Managing Risk

•• Identification of risk and responsibility.Identification of risk and responsibility.

•• Assessment of the likelihood of risk of ‘serious’ Assessment of the likelihood of risk of ‘serious’ 
harm, to whom and when.harm, to whom and when.

•• Planned reaction to reduce the seriousness of Planned reaction to reduce the seriousness of 
potential outcomes.  potential outcomes.  

•• Appropriate use of resources, direction to support Appropriate use of resources, direction to support 

•• Appropriate enforcement action.Appropriate enforcement action.

P
age 28



What works to reduce 
re-offending?

• No magic bullet

• 7 Reducing Reoffending Pathways - but no 
consensus on sequence or priority pathwaysconsensus on sequence or priority pathways

• Needs/risk based - tailor services to individuals 
and develop shared priority groups e.g. IOM

• Partnership approach - no one agency can do 
this alone or assume sole responsibility

P
age 29



Seven Pathways to Reduce 
Reoffending

P
age 30


	Agenda
	4 Community Safety Strategic Priorities 2011-12
	5 Mid-year Achievements - Community Safety Strategy 2011-12
	6 Kent Probation Overview - Presentation by Sue Moyse  Senior Probation Officer

